Jefferson County Library Service

Mailing Address: Dwight Foster Public Library
209 Merchants Avenue
Fort Atkinson, WI 53538

(920) 563-7790

Jefferson County Library Board Meeting
Date and Time: December 3 at 5:00 p.m.
Location: Dwight Foster Public Library or via Zoom
https://uso2web.zoom.us/j/912640170120mn=82159605950
Meeting ID: 912 640 1701

Agenda

1. Call to order
Public hearing relating to the 2025-2029 Plan for Jefferson County Library Services
3. Review and possible action relating to the minutes of the November 13, 2024
meeting (Action)
4. Unfinished Business
A. Jefferson County Library Service Plan for 2025-2029 (Action)
B. Update Jefferson County Library Service Guidelines (Action)
5. Adjournment

i

Link to Per Diem for this meeting

If you have special needs or circumstances which may make communication or
accessibility difficult at the meeting, please call (920) 563-7790 at least three (3) days
prior to the meeting date. Accommodations will, to the fullest extent possible, be made
available on request by a person with a disability.



Jefferson County Library Board Meeting Minutes Wednesday, November 13, 2024

Board members present: Tim Semo, Richard Moulding, Amanda Golson, Greg Haasch,
Art Biermier.

Library and System staff present: Karol Kennedy, Minetta Lippert, Diane Jaroch, Jodi
Kessel Szpiszar, Kelli Mountford, Peg Checkai, Samantha Seeman, Gerard Saylor

1.Call to order and introductions: Meeting was called to order at 5:01 by Board
President Tim Semo.

2. Approval of minutes of the July 24, 2024 meeting (Action): Art B moved to approve
the minutes as presented, Rich seconded. Minutes were approved unanimously.

3. Comments from the public: None
4. Correspondence: None

5. Administrator’s report — Minetta Lippert: Minetta shared that Tim Semo was
reappointed to the Board for another term and Duane Scott was appointed to fill
Barbara Beaver’s vacation position. Karol, Tim, and Minetta met on September 25 to
begin updating the Jefferson County Library Plan. All Jefferson County library
municipalities (except Whitewater) submitted resolutions to Jefferson County requesting
exemption from the County library tax. Diane from Whitewater shared that Whitewater
has the resolution on their next Council agenda. Finally, Minetta shared that many
library and system staff attended the Wisconsin Library Association conference held in
Green Bay the prior week.

6. Report from Library System Representative — Art Biermeier: Art reported on the
approval of the 2025 State Library System Plan, member library agreement
addendums, and the discovery layer contract.

7. Report from Library System Director — Karol Kennedy: Karol shared that Bridges is
running a “Thankful for Libraries” social media campaign as well as a “Greetings from
your Wisconsin Library” direct mail campaign for residents who moved in Jefferson
County within the past 12 months. Karol said that the owner of the System’s delivery
service has changes but drivers and trucks are staying the same.

8. Unfinished Business A. Draft of Jefferson County Library Service Plan for 2025-2029
(Action): Minetta, Karol, and Tim reviewed the biggest proposed changes to the library
services plan. Art Biermeier moved to recommend that the plan draft go to public

hearing on December 3rd, seconded by Greg Haasch. Motion approved unanimously.



9. New Business

A. Report on 2025 Jefferson County budget (Discussion): Karol shared that the County
budget was approved.

B. Review and update Jefferson County Library Service Guidelines (Action): Karol
advised that action does not need to be taken at this meeting. Karol recommends
adding three points to the guidelines about orientations for new trustees, training for
trustees, and that Library Boards conduct annual reviews for their library directors. The
guidelines will be updated and presented at the December meeting for consideration for
approval.

10. Reports from County libraries: Libraries shared about current and future building
projects. Many directors discussed their municipal budgets and how these are affected
Jefferson County libraries. Directors shared hiring woes and program successes.

11. Adjournment: Art Biermeier Moves, Tim Semo Seconds. Motion approved
unanimously.



Plan for Jefferson County
Library Services
2025-2029

The Jefferson County Library Service works
to support and strengthen our municipal
libraries so that all county residents receive
quality public library service.



Background

Chapter 43 of the Wisconsin Statutes established the state’s policy regarding public
libraries. Because Chapter 43 outlines certain responsibilities for counties, it is
important to note that this policy emphasizes:

e The importance of providing all Wisconsin residents with free access to
knowledge, information, and diversity of ideas;

e The critical role played by public, school, special, and academic libraries in
providing that access;

e The major educational, cultural, and economic asset that is represented in the
collective knowledge and information resources at the libraries in Wisconsin;

e The importance of public libraries to the democratic process; and
e That the most effective use of Wisconsin's library resources can occur only

through interlibrary cooperation among all types of libraries and with the
effective use of technology.

County Profile

Jefferson County is in Wisconsin's southeastern quarter, with an area of 583 square
miles. The towns of Aztalan, Cold Spring, Concord, Farmington, Hebron, Ixonia,
Jefferson, Koshkonong, Lake Mills, Milford, Oakland, Palmyra, Sullivan, Sumner,
Waterloo and Watertown; the cities of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson, Lake Mills, Waterloo,
Watertown and Whitewater; and the villages of Cambridge, Johnson Creek, Lac La
Belle, Palmyra and Sullivan form the county’s political subdivisions.

Watertown, Whitewater, Cambridge and Lac La Belle municipal boundaries cross
county lines. Watertown is partially in Dodge County. Whitewater is partially in
Walworth County. Cambridge is partially in Dane County and Lac La Belle is partially
in Waukesha County.

According to the US Census Bureau's estimated 2023 population statistics, about 37%
of Jefferson County’s residents live in rural areas. For this plan’s purposes, rural
residents are defined as residents who live in municipalities (such as townships and
villages) in the county that do not maintain a public library. In Jefferson County those
areas are shown in Table 1 below.



Table 1. Municipalities without libraries

Towns

Villages

Aztalan

Lac La Belle

Cold Spring

Sullivan

Concord
Farmington
Hebron
Ixonia
Jefferson
Koshkonong
Lake Mills
Milford
Oakland
Palmyra
Sullivan
Sumner
Waterloo
Watertown

County Library Service Profile

Jefferson County maintains a library service under the authority of Wisconsin Statutes
43.57 and 43.58. The governing body of the Jefferson County Library Service is the
Jefferson County Library Board. It was established by the Jefferson County Board of
Supervisors in 1979. It consists of up to seven members confirmed by the Jefferson
County Board of Supervisors. The composition, powers and duties of the Jefferson
County Library Board are prescribed in Wisconsin Statutes. The Jefferson County
Library Board meets approximately 2-4 times a year to plan, evaluate services, prepare
the county budget request, decide on the distribution of county funds and act on
matters regarding the Bridges Library System. More information about the county
library service is available at https:/jeffersoncountylibraries.info/

There are nine public libraries in the county providing library service to the residents of
Jefferson County. A resident may visit any of these public libraries to seek information,
materials and services. The Dwight Foster Public Library in Fort Atkinson currently
serves as the resource library for Jefferson County. The resource library designation
is determined annually by the Jefferson County Library Board. The nine Jefferson
County libraries are:

Cambridge Community Library

Dwight Foster Public Library (Fort Atkinson)
Jefferson Public Library

Johnson Creek Public Library

L.D. Fargo Public Library (Lake Mills)
Powers Memorial Library (Palmyra)



e Karl Junginger Memorial Library (Waterloo)
e Watertown Public Library
e Irvin L. Young Memorial Library (Whitewater).

Jefferson County, through the Jefferson County Library Board, contracts with these
nine municipal libraries to provide library services. As a result of that contractual
process, rural residents have equal access to services at any of the nine municipal
libraries in the same manner as the residents of those municipalities.

On January 1, 2016, the Jefferson County Library Service joined with the libraries of
the former Waukesha County Federated Library System to form the new Bridges
Library System, consisting of eight libraries in Jefferson County (excluding the
Cambridge Public Library, which is a member of the South Central Library System)
and the 16 libraries of Waukesha County. Prior to this, from 1980 to 2015, the eight
libraries of Jefferson County were part of the Mid-Wisconsin Federated Library System,
along with the libraries of Dodge and Washington counties.

Public library systems are organized according to Wisconsin Statutes 43.13 through
43.24. The Bridges Library System is funded by state aid monies. Library system
services include but are not limited to management of the shared automation system
and consortium, interlibrary loan, van delivery, continuing education, grants for specific
purposes, inclusive and youth services, technology assistance and cooperative
agreements with other library systems. County libraries receive significant benefits by
virtue of their library system membership.

Regional library system board member allocation was agreed upon between
Waukesha and Jefferson Counties. Per Wisconsin Statute, the allocation is based on
estimated population: Waukesha County has eight seats on the library system

board and Jefferson County has three seats on the library system board. The ratio is
to be revisited with each census.

Planning Process

Chapter 43.11 specifically addresses the requirements for county library
planning. While library service plans can address any appropriate issues,
Wisconsin Statutes Section 43.11 requires that counties address at least the
following in their county library plan:

« How public library service will be provided to residents of those
municipalities in the county not maintaining a public library (locally referred
to as True Non-Residents or TNR);

o The method and level of funding that will be provided by the county to
implement services described in the plan, including the reimbursement of
municipal libraries for providing library service to in-county and adjacent
county residents; and

« A method for allocating membership on the regional library system board
between the counties in the regional library system.



Before 1979, many Jefferson County residents did not have access to library services.
At that time, the county had seven municipal libraries supported by municipal
taxpayers. Most residents who lived in municipalities without libraries did not contribute
any financial support for libraries. Some municipal libraries were beginning to charge
non-municipal county residents a user fee. In early 1978, a planning committee was
formed by the county to study the issue. The county library plan that was approved
required that all citizens of the county have equal access to a public library. That plan
was in effect until 1994 when the county library plan was rewritten. A new library plan
was written in 2000 and adopted for 2001-2006. It was revised for 2008-2012. In
2009, the county administrator asked the Jefferson County Library Board to conduct
an operational audit. The board responded by engaging Professor Steve Grabow,
planning specialist with the UW-Extension, to lead it through a comprehensive,
yearlong review process. Those meetings, together with the follow-up work done in
2011 and 2012, laid the foundation for the 2012-2015 plan.

Since that time, the Jefferson County Library Board has reviewed and updated the plan
every three years. In July 2015, the service plan was updated for 2016-2018. It was
adopted at the November 11, 2015, Jefferson County Library Board meeting. In July
2018, the plan was reviewed and updated for 2019-2021. It was adopted at the
November 28, 2018, Jefferson County Library Board meeting. In July 2021, the plan
was reviewed and updated for 2022-2025. It was adopted at the September 8, 2021,
Jefferson County Library Board meeting. Funding formula changes were approved at
the Jefferson County Board meeting on September 14, 2021.

Prior to each plan approval, a public hearing, to which representatives of each public
library in the county were invited, was conducted. The plans were submitted to the
Jefferson County Board of Supervisors for approval and approved plans were provided
to the Division for Libraries and Technology (DLT) of the Wisconsin Department of
Pubilic Instruction (DPI).

Goals and Objectives

1. Extend quality library services to all Jefferson County citizens.

A. Provide, and ensure access to, a full range of library services.
Currently, all residents benefit from the following library services:

Audiovisual equipment

Book discussion groups
Books/ebooks

Community information

Computers

Cooling shelters

Digital materials

DVDs, audiobooks, and music discs



Early literacy programs

Exam proctoring

Fax service

Independent study areas
Interlibrary loan

Internet and wireless access

Job search information and assistance
Laminating service

Large print books

Library of Things, such as kayaks, seeds, dolls
Licensed databases

Literacy services

Local history resources
Magazines and Newspapers
Maker spaces

Meeting rooms

Memory Café programs
Photocopiers/scanners

Programs for all ages

Reference materials and services
Resume assistance

Skilled staff

Spanish language collections
STEM kits

Summer reading programs

Tax forms

Training on technology

Warming shelters

Web and mobile library access
Wi-fi hotspots to check out

In 2023, a total of 850,410 physical items were checked out of the nine county
libraries. Of those items, 178,684, which represents 21% of the total, were
checked out by Jefferson County residents who live in municipalities without
their own libraries. This percentage of usage by rural residents has been stable
for many years.

In addition to physical items, libraries also circulate digital material. In 2023,
digital circulations through Overdrive grew with a 4.8% increase from 2022 to
2023. A total of 133,859 digital items were checked out of county libraries.
Residents who live in municipalities in Jefferson County without libraries
represent 25.65% of Overdrive usage in 2023, with 34,336 digital items checked
out to these residents. This ratio has been consistent and represents a higher
ratio than for physical circulations.



B. Support and help fund county libraries’ use of technology.

County libraries have stayed true to their role as an informational and
educational resource for all our citizens even as rapidly developing technologies
have profoundly changed how these resources can be accessed.

An important service goal for county libraries is providing equitable and inclusive
public access to an array of technologies, including computers and the internet,
as tools for living in a modern-day world. Some county libraries further support
internet access by circulating Wi-Fi hotspots and extending their Wi-Fi networks
beyond the boundaries of their walls. With 8.3% of the population living in
poverty in Jefferson County, libraries provide an essential service in helping to
bridge the gap in the growing digital divide.

Implementing technologies to improve library efficiency, effectiveness and
innovation is also important as all county libraries strive to make the best use of
tax dollars while providing the best possible library service. In January 2016,
when eight Jefferson County libraries joined the new Bridges Library System,
they thereby also joined an automation consortium called CAFE, merging the
catalogs of the 24 member libraries. Automation partnerships provide cost
savings to our libraries through economies of scale, while also increasing
access to materials for all county citizens. Similarly, libraries can work together
to offer digital materials through resources such as Overdrive and Hoopla.

Remote and mobile access to library resources is important. To enable
residents to easily access library resources and meet the needs of residents,
county libraries provide remote access to the library catalog, a Bridges library
system-wide mobile app for the CAFE catalog and access to premium content
such as Ancestry.com and Consumer Reports. Individual libraries have
websites, and the county library service maintains a website as well.

In some years, the county has allocated funds for capital purchases to assist
municipalities with technology improvements in their libraries. The past
requests to the county for capital funding have been irregular.

C. Encourage county libraries to meet or exceed the service
guidelines setting forth expectations for excellence.

The county library board adopted a set of guidelines setting forth the board’s
expectations for excellence in all the county libraries. The guidelines should be
reviewed annually by each local library board.

D. Support sharing among county libraries.

1United States Census Bureau
(https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/jeffersoncountywisconsin,US/PST045223)



Encourage communication among the county libraries so that sharing of
materials, ideas, programs, staff and solutions is maximized.

E. Advocate for library system membership benefits that strengthen
county libraries.

The county library board should conduct an annual review to ensure the
current library system is meeting the needs of the Jefferson County libraries.

F. Take advantage of opportunities to create collaborations and
partnerships that improve county libraries’ abilities to offer
services.

County libraries should seek partnerships with community organizations and
other agencies wherever the relationships might enhance and promote the
services they can offer.

Provide equitable funding for library services in Jefferson County.

A. Seek to provide a “fair share” reimbursement to all public libraries
in the county for rural usage by utilizing a formula approved by the
Jefferson County Library Board.

Since 1979, Jefferson County has taxed its rural residents so that those
residents would have access to all municipal library services available within
Jefferson County.

Municipalities within Jefferson County that already tax themselves to provide
support for their municipal library may exempt themselves from the county
library tax providing they meet the requirements specified in Wis. Stat. 43.64
(2). All municipalities in Jefferson County have historically done so.

As a result, the county tax is assessed on rural residents only and is a non-
countywide tax. This has allowed the county library levy to be excluded from
any county tax levy restrictions that the county must follow.

In 1992, Jefferson County first met its goal of reimbursing county libraries 100%
of the average cost to provide library services to its rural residents. Since that
time, its commitment to “fair share” funding (paying for library services at a rate
equitable with municipal residents) has made a significant difference in the
quality of libraries throughout Jefferson County.

Beginning in 2008, the annual county library budget request was determined by
a formula that multiplied the number of each library’s rural circulations by the
average countywide cost per circulation during that year. The countywide cost
per circulation average was then used to reimburse each county library based
on its rural circulations. Each library was guaranteed by state law a



reimbursement rate of at least 70% of its costs. Most libraries received a rate
higher than that. The goal was that Jefferson County tax at a rate of 100% of
the aggregate costs per circulation so that the “fair share” partnership between
the county and the municipalities was maintained.

From 1995 through 2007, Jefferson County maintained an annual contractual
agreement with the Oconomowoc Public Library which reimbursed that library
for use by rural residents of Jefferson County in recognition of county residents’
wish to use that library. This request for funding was added on to the top of the
total budget request each year. It provided important access for those Jefferson
County residents who lived in the far eastern portion of the county, many of
whom reside in the Oconomowoc Area School District.

In 2006, state law changed, requiring counties to pay adjacent county libraries;
as a result, beginning in 2008 a separate contract with Oconomowoc became
unnecessary. That change, which was signed into law on May 19, 2006, is
known as Act 420. A key provision of the law extended to all adjacent counties
the requirement that counties reimburse public libraries for the cost of serving
county residents who live in areas of the county without public library service.
All libraries in counties adjacent to Jefferson County (that serve Jefferson
County residents living in municipalities without libraries) that make a valid claim
for reimbursement by July 1, are included in the county library budget request
for the following year.

In 2017, the Jefferson County Library Board adopted a new funding formula.
The distribution portion of the formula was revised to add in a safety net factor
thereby stabilizing library payments. The collection portion of the funding
formula was also simplified.

In 2021, the Jefferson County Library Board reviewed the formula to determine
what if any modifications should be made to incorporate digital collection usage
into the formula. At that time, Overdrive was the only digital materials vendor
able to provide data verifying the patron residency for each circulation. Since
2022, additional vendors can provide this data. The funding formula language
has been updated to reflect this change.

A description of the current formula is shown in Appendix A.

B. Continue to provide funding for central services such as the
county library contract and the board expenses.

In addition to reimbursement to libraries, each year the Jefferson County Library
Service budget includes a small amount of funding for county library board
activities such as meetings and mileage and the annual contract with a county
resource library.



C. Rely on the Bridges Library System to annually collect and verify
adjacent county library requests and submit valid requests for
reimbursement in the following year’s budget request.

Although the statute indicates that the county clerk is the recipient of the
requests, the county clerk can assign the tasks to the county library service. For
many years, the county library board offered the services of the county resource
library to do all the necessary work related to adjacent county requests for
reimbursement. Because it saved the county clerk considerable work and
because the county resource library staff had the library knowledge needed to
carefully examine and verify all requests, this arrangement was financially
beneficial for the county.

Since 2016, the adjacent county reimbursement tasks are handled by the
Bridges Library System, to be overseen by the county library administrator.

D. Ensure that county payments to municipal libraries for providing
services are disbursed by March 15t each year per Wis. Stat.
43.12(1).

The Bridges Library System, in conjunction with the county library administrator,
will send contracts for service to the Jefferson County libraries each year after
the budget is adopted with a deadline for return on or before February 1%t of the
following year so the county can process their payments prior to March 13,

Each year, Bridges Library System will provide to the county an itemized
payment schedule detailing approved amounts for all county and adjacent
county libraries as soon as possible after the budget has been adopted.

Educate stakeholders about the state of and need for county library
services.

A. Report to the Jefferson County Board of Supervisors on an annual
basis or as requested.

There is an annual appearance of the county library board and librarians to the
finance committee but the county library board president and/or the county
library administrator is available to appear before the County Board of
Supervisors at any time.

B. It is expected that county library directors attend county library
board meetings.

The county library board depends on feedback and direction from local
librarians to guide them in their decision-making. Attendance at county library
board meetings is considered important and is set forth as an expectation in the
county library contract. While occasional meetings might be missed, prolonged

10



absences are not allowed. Per the county contract for library services that each
library signs annually, “the Municipal Library shall direct the librarian or other
representative to attend periodic County meetings with the Jefferson County
Library Council to coordinate and improve county library services.”

C. County library directors are encouraged to share county library
information with their local library boards.

Updates from the county library service to the local library board are important
and help “close the loop” on the exchange of important information.

D. Maintain the Jefferson County Library Service website.

The county library service website can be found at:
https://jeffersoncountylibraries.info/.

The website is maintained by the county library administrator and includes
information about the Jefferson County Library Service, a list of county libraries,
details about the Jefferson County Library Board, and other useful county library
service information.

E. Offer to have a county library board member or the county library
administrator attend a municipal library board meeting for
support.

At any time, a county library director may request a visit from the county library
administrator or a county library board member.

F. Make County appointments to local library boards as authorized
under Wis. Stat. 43.60 when feasible and with input from local
libraries.

To increase engagement with and communication between local libraries and
the county, an effort will be made to explore the opportunity provided in the
statute that allows counties to make appointments to local library boards in
proportion to their share of funding. The county will consider current library
board composition, library board size as well as availability of qualified board
members.

Review of the Plan

This plan will be reviewed annually by the county library board. Changes may be made
as needed. Before the end of 2029, the board will complete a review and revision
process of the plan to be implemented the following year.

11



Contact Information

Jefferson County Library Service
% Dwight Foster Public Library
209 Merchants Avenue

Fort Atkinson, W| 53538
920-563-7790

12



Appendix A

Jefferson County Library Funding Formula Description

Formula to Determine County Library Budget Request Amount — Collection Formula:
Step 1: Calculate the previous year's percentage of circulations to residents who live in
municipalities without libraries. These residents are referred to as True Non-Residents
(TNR). Calculations will include the circulation of physical materials and any verifiable
digital circulation, if digital material is offered to Jefferson County TNR. This is done by
dividing the total number of circulations made at county libraries to residents who live in
municipalities without libraries (TNR) by the total number of circulations made at the
county libraries. PERCENTAGE CIRCULATION ATTRIBUTED TO TNR (TNR %)

Step 2: Sum the county libraries’ operating expenditures as reported on the previous
year's state required, filed annual report. OPERATING EXPENDITURES (OE)

Step 3: Multiply the percentage of circulation made by residents who live in municipalities
without libraries (TNR) by the total operating expenditures to determine the base
allocation. BASE ALLOCATION (BASE)

Step 4: Add in adjacent county library requests made by July 1. ADJACENT COUNTY
LIBRARY REQUESTS (ADJCO)

Step 5: Add in county library board administrative costs (ADMIN)

TNR% x OE = BASE + ADJCO + ADMIN = Total Collection Formula Amount
to use for budget request

Formula to Determine County Library Payments - Distribution Formula:

Step 1: Determine minimum amount of funding for each library, incorporating verifiable
digital material circulation if offered to Jefferson County TNR, required under statute (as
a result of W1 Act 150) for each library. ACT 150 AMOUNT

Step 2: Examine each library’s prior year county allocation. Calculate either a 5% or
$5,000 reduction from this amount—whichever has the lesser impact on the library.
HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT.

Step 3: Determine the rural compensation amount for each library, including verifiable
digital material circulation if offered to Jefferson County TNR, by multiplying the number
of circulations to people who live in municipalities without libraries by the prior-year actual
county-wide dollar rate per-item-borrowed (also known as the county-wide cost per
circulation), using data from the libraries’ previous year’s state annual report. RURAL
COMPENSATION AMOUNT

Step 4: Compare each library's RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT (step 3) with their
ACT 150 AMOUNT (step 1) and the HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT (step 2). Libraries with
either a higher ACT 150 AMOUNT or a higher HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT than their
RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT receive the highest amount calculated. This caps
the loss for these libraries, but also makes them ineligible to receive additional funds in a
SECONDARY ALLOCATION.




Step 5: If a library's RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT is more than their HOLD
HARMLESS AMOUNT and their ACT 150 AMOUNT, the library is eligible for a
SECONDARY ALLOCATION. The amount of funding remaining for the SECONDARY
ALLOCATION amount is determined by subtracting the total for all libraries in step 4 of
the distribution formula from the total appropriation for in-county libraries as determined
by the Library Collection Formula.

Step 6: After removing libraries not eligible for the SECONDARY ALLOCATION, the
remaining libraries’ RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNTS are apportioned by share to
reflect each libraries proportional percentage of circulation to citizens who live in
municipalities without libraries.

Step 7: The final distribution payment for each library is the highest of their ACT 150
AMOUNT, HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT, or proportional allocation amount calculated in
Step 6.

14



Plan for Jefferson County
Library Serviees
20252-20294

S
Q=




ensure

1mprovement =

« fund strengthen

~ partners

systems

Q)
v

established
trustees

" SHARE

FortAtkinson

LakeMills

The Jefferson County Library Service works
to support and strengthen our municipal
libraries so that a/l county residents receive
quality public library service.



Background

Chapter 43 of the Wisconsin Statutes established the state’s policy regarding public
libraries. Because Chapter 43 outlines certain responsibilities for counties, it is
important to note that this policy emphasizes:

« The importance of providing all of Wisconsin residents with free access to
knowledge, information, and diversity of ideas;

¢ The critical role played by public, school, special, and academic libraries in
providing that access;

e The major educational, cultural, and economic asset that is represented in the
collective knowledge and information resources at the libraries in Wisconsin;

» The importance of public libraries to the democratic process; and

¢ That the most effective use of Wisconsin’s library resources can occur only
through interlibrary cooperation among all types of libraries and with the
effective use of technology.

County Profile

Jefferson County is located in Wisconsin's southeastern quarter, with an area of 583
square miles. The towns of Aztalan, Cold Spring, Concord, Farmington, Hebron,
Ixonia, Jefferson, Koshkonong, Lake Mills, Milford, Oakland, Palmyra, Sullivan,
Sumner, Waterloo and Watertown; the cities of Fort Atkinson, Jefferson, Lake Mills,
Waterloo, Watertown; and Whitewater; and the villages of Cambridge, Johnson
Creek, Lac La Belle, Palmyra and Sullivan form the county’s political subdivisions.

Watertown, Whitewater, Cambridge and Lac La Belle municipal boundaries cross
county lines. Watertown is partially in Dodge County. Whitewater is partially in
Walworth County. Cambridge is partially in Dane County and Lac La Belle is partially
in Waukesha County.

According to the US Census Bureau’s estimated 2023 population statistics, about
37% of Jefferson County’s residents live in rural areas. Appreximately-43%of
Jefferson-County'sresidentsive-inrural-areas—For this plan’s purposes, rural
residents are defined as residents who live in municipalities (such as townships and
villages) in the county that do not maintain a public library. In Jefferson County
those areas are shown in Table 1 below.




Table 1. Municipalities without libraries
Towns Villages
Aztalan Lac La Belle

Cold Spring Sullivan
Concord

Farmington
Hebron
Ixonia

Jefferson
Koshkonong
Lake Mills
Milford
Oakland
Palmyra
Sullivan
Sumner
Waterloo
Watertown

County Library Service Profile

Jefferson County maintains a library service under the authority of Wisconsin
Statutes 43.57 and 43.58. The governing body of the Jefferson County Library
Service is the Jefferson County Library Board. It was established by the Jefferson
County Board of Supervisors in 1979. It consists of up to seven members confirmed
by the Jefferson County Board of Supervisors. The composition, powers, and duties
of the Jefferson County Library Board are prescribed in Wisconsin Statutes. The
Jefferson County Library Board meets approximately 2-4 times a year to plan,
evaluate services, prepare the county budget request, decide on the distribution of
county funds, and act on matters regarding ir-regard-te-the Bridges Library System.
More information about the county library service is available at
https://jeffersoncountylibraries.info/

There are nine public libraries in the county providing library service to the residents
of Jefferson County. A resident may visit any of these public libraries to seek
information, materials; and services. The Dwight Foster Public Library in Fort
Atkinson currently serves as the resource library for Jefferson County. The resource
library designation is determined annually by the Jefferson County Library Board. The
nine Jefferson County libraries are:

s Cambridge Community Library - - { Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma
= Dwight Foster Public Library (Fort Atkinson) B [ Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma
-_IJeffersonPubllc_ l__i_bra_ry . ) ) { Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma
¢ ;Johnson Creek Public Library ~ _ o +{ Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma
o L.D. Far gp_P_u_bI_ic_ |__Ip|: ary (I:aAk_e_IV_liI_Is) o | Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma




= ;Powers Memorial Library (Palmyra) _ _ { Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma

¢ ;Karl Junginger Memorial Library (Waterloo) I { Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma e

o Watertown El{bJLC Library = e _ - | Formatted: Font: (Defauit) Tahoma - ]

o andIrvin L. Young Memorial Library (Whitewater). | Formatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma =
".Ft_)rmatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 1

Jefferson County, through the Jefferson County Library Board, contracts with these | 025" + Indent at: 05" !

nine municipal libraries to provide library services. As a result of that contractual
process, rural residents have equal access to services at any of the nine municipal
libraries in the same manner as the residents of those municipalities.

On January 1, 2016, the Jefferson County Library Service joined with the libraries of
the former Waukesha County Federated Library System to form the new Bridges
Library System, consisting of eight libraries in Jefferson County (excluding the
Cambridge Public Library, which is a member of the South Central Library System)
and the 16 libraries of Waukesha County. Prior to this, from 1980 to 2015, the eight
libraries of Jefferson County were part of the Mid-Wisconsin Federated Library
System, along with the libraries of Dodge and Washington counties.

Public library systems are organized according to Wisconsin Statutes 43.13 through
43.24. The Bridges Library System is funded by state aid monies. Library system
services include_but are not limited to: management of the shared automation
system and consortium, interlibrary loan, van delivery, continuing education, grants
for specific purposes, inclusive and youth services, technology assistance and
cooperative agreements with other library systems. County libraries receive
significant benefits by virtue of their library system membership.

Regional library system board member allocation was agreed upon between
Waukesha and Jefferson Counties. Per Wisconsin Statute, the allocation is based on
estimated population: Waukesha County has eight seats on the library system

board and Jefferson County has three seats on the library system board. The ratio is
to be revisited with each census.

Planning Process

Chapter 43.11 specifically addresses the requirements for county library
planning. While library service plans can address any appropriate issues,
Wisconsin Statutes Section 43.11 requires that counties address at least the | Formatted: Font: Not Bold _
following in their county library plan:

« How public library service will be provided to residents of those
municipalities in the county not maintaining a public library (locally referred

to as True Non-Residentsor INR), |E’rﬁatted= Font: Not Bold __
= The method and level of funding that will be provided by the county in-order * | Formatted: Font: Not Bold —
to implement services described in the plan, including the reimbursement [ Formatted: Font: Not Bold

| Formatted: Font: Not Bold



of municipal libraries for providing library service to in-county and adjacent
county residents; and

=—A method for allocating membership on the regional library system board
between the counties in the regional library system.

Before 1979, many Jefferson County residents did not have access to library services.
At that time, the county had seven municipal libraries supported by municipal
taxpayers. Most residents who lived in municipalities without libraries did not
contribute any financial support for libraries. Some municipal fibraries were beginning
to charge non-municipal county residents a user fee. In early 1978, a planning
committee was formed by the county to study the issue. The county library plan that
was approved required that all citizens of the county have equal access to a public
library. That plan was in effect until 1994 when the county library plan was rewritten.
A new library plan was written in 2000 and adopted for-the 2001-2006-time-period.
It was revised for-the 2008-2012-tire-peried. In 2009, county administrator-Gary
Petre asked the Jefferson County Library Board to conduct an operational audit. The
board responded by engaging Professor Steve Grabow, planning specialist with the
UW-Extension, to lead it through a comprehensive, yearlong review process. Those
meetings, together with the follow-up work done in 2011 and 2012, laid the
foundation for the 2012-2015 plan.

Hiy—%ﬁﬁhmmm%a&apdam&%ﬁ%wmdeﬁe&aﬁhe

WWWWM&%HG&M
Mwmmmﬂvmmwmmmmt

Since that time, the Jefferson County Library Board has reviewed and updated the

plan every three years. In July 2015, the service plan was updated for 2016-2018. It

was adopted at the November 11, 2015, Jefferson County Library Board meeting. In

July 2018, the plan was reviewed and updated for 2019-2021. It was adopted at the
November 28, 2018, Jefferson County Library Board meeting. In July 2021, the plan

was reviewed and updated for 2022- 2025 It was adopted at the September 8, 2021,
Jefferson County Library Board meeting. Funding formula changes were approved at
the Jefferson County Board meeting on September 14, 2021.

'[_Fo_rmatted: Font: (Default) Tahoma

i

Formatted: Normal (Web), Right: 0.39", Outline numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: Bullet + Aligned at: 0.25" +
Tab after: 0.5" + Indent at: 0.5", Font Alignment: Baseline

—

|
b



Prior to each plan approval, a public hearing, to which representatives of each public
library in the county were invited, was conducted. The plans were submitted to the

Jefferson County Board of Supervisors for approval and approved plans were
provided to the Division for Libraries and Technology (DLT) of the Wisconsin

Department of Public Instruction (DPI).

Goals and Objectives

1. Extend quality library services to Jefferson County citizens.-witheut

A. Provide, and ensure access to, a full range of library services.
Currently, all residents benefit from the following library

services:

+Skilled-staff +—Boeksfe-beoks——
. BUBS: aHdIebeaIEs! a”d InHSiE diss ’ ‘l Iake*r SﬁBEES

It & 254 il o Digital mates
‘—%et'iﬂﬁ OO = -‘r_lﬂi‘eeﬂ'sed"dm%s
+ Reference-materials-and-services «—Fraiping-on-technolegy

Jot hinf i { acii Tnterkit |
+—Magazinesand-Newspapers Photocopiers/scanners
o Faxservice Computers
«Community-information -—Early-literacy-programs

e Audiovisual equipment
o Book discussion groups
e Books/ebooks

Community information

[ ]
e Computers

e Cooling shelters
*

Digital materials
e DVDs, audiobooks, and music discs




Early literacy programs
Exam proctoring

» Fax service

e _Independent study areas

« Interlibrary loan

e Internet and wireless access
o

L

L ]

*

Job search information and assistance
Laminating service
Large print books

o Library of Things, such as kayaks, seeds, dolls

Licensed databases
e literacy services
e _local history resources
e Magazines and Newspapers

e Maker spaces
s Meeting rooms
(-]

L]

Memory Café programs
» Photocopiers/scanners
« Programs for all ages
o Reference materials and services
e Resume assistance
e Skilled staff
e Spanish lanquage collections
e STEM kits
[ ]
L ]
[ ]
o
e

Summer reading programs
Tax forms

Training on technology
Warming shelters

Web and mobile library access
»  Wi-fi hotspots to check out

In 2023, a total of 850,410 physical items were checked out of the nine

county libraries. Of those items, 178,684, which represents 21% of the total,
were checked out by Jefferson County residents who live in municipalities

without their own libraries. This percentage of usage by rural residents has
been stable for many years.




In addition to physical items, libraries also circulate digital material. In 2023,
digital circulations throuah Overdrive arew with a 4.8% increase from 2022 to

2023. A total of 133,859 digital items were checked out of county libraries.

Residents wha live in municipalities in Jefferson County without libraries

represent 25.65% of Overdrive usage in 2023, with 34,336 digital items

checked out to these residents. This ratio has been consistent and represents
a higher ratio than for physical circulations.

B. Support and help fund county libraries’ use of technology to
expand library access.

County libraries have stayed true to their role as an informational and

educational resource for all our citizens even as rapidly developing
technologies have profoundly changed how these resources can be accessed.

*United-States- Census Buread
Lhat T, 3 it ol faate ! Caat linlala bl 1. e andPSTOLSA LAY
s PS LGS 216

Epsw i Setigirierjerreraieot




An important service goal for county libraries is providing equitable and
inclusive public access to an array of technologies, including computers and
the internet, as tools for living in a modern-day world. Some county libraries
further support internet access by circulating Wi-Fi hotspots and extending
their Wi-Fi networks bevond the boundaries of their walls. With 8.3% of the

population living in poverty in Jefferson County?, libraries provide an essential
service in helping to bridge the gap in the growing digital divide.

Implementing_technologies to improve library efficiency, effectiveness and
innovation is also important as all county libraries strive to make the best use

of tax dollars while providing the best possible library service. In January 2016,
when the eight Jefferson County libraries joined the new Bridges Library

System, they thereby also joined an automation consortium called CAFE,
merging the catalogs of the 24 member libraries. Automation partnerships
provide cost savings to our libraries through economies of scale, while also
increasing access to materials for all county citizens. Similarly, libraries can work
together to offer digital materials through resources such as Overdrive and

Hoopla.

P

Remote and mobile access to library resources is important. To enable residents
to easily access library resources and meet the needs of residents, coun

libraries provide remote access to the library catalog, a Bridges library system-
wide mobile app for the CAFE catalog and access to premium content such as

Ancestry.com and Consumer Reports. Individual libraries have websites, and
the county library service maintains a website as well.

In some years, the county has allocated funds for capital purchases to assist
municipalities with technology improvements in their libraries. The past
requests to the county for capltal fundmg have been |rregular A—fe&r—year

C. Encourage county libraries to meet or exceed the service
guidelines setting forth expectations for excellence.

In-2042+The county library board adopted a set of guidelines setting forth
the board’s expectations for excellence in all the county libraries. AlHibraries

are-asked-to-present-the-guidelines-to-their library-board-ef-trustees-for-review

2United States Census Bureau
(https/www.census.goviquick facts/ fact/table/feffersoncountywisconsin LUS/PSTO45223)

| Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"




and-consideration—The guidelines should be reviewed annually by each local
library board. when-the-service-plan-isreviewed,

D. Support sharing among county libraries.

Encourage communication among the county libraries so that sharing of
materials, ideas, programs, staff; and solutions is maximized.

E. Advocate for library system membership benefits that
strengthen county libraries.

The county library board should conduct an annual review to ensure the
current library system is meeting the needs of the Jefferson County libraries.

F. Take advantage of opportunities to create collaborations and
partnerships that improve county libraries’ abilities to offer
services.

County libraries should seek partnerships with community organizations and
other agencies wherever the relationships might enhance and promote the
services they can offer.

Continue to seek equitable funding for library services in Jefferson
County.

A. Seek to provide a “fair share” reimbursement to all public
libraries in the county for rural usage by utilizing a formula
reviewed by the Jefferson County Library Board when the
service plan is reviewed.

Since 1979, Jefferson County has taxed its rural residents so that those
residents would have access to all municipal library services available within
Jefferson County.

Municipalities within Jefferson County that already tax themselves to provide
support for their municipal library may exempt themselves from the county
library tax providing they meet the requirements specified in Wis. Stat. 43.64
(2). All municipalities in Jefferson County have historically done so.



As a result, the county tax is assessed on rural residents only and is a non-
countywide tax. This has allowed the county library levy to be excluded from
any county tax levy restrictions that the county must follow.

In 1992, Jefferson County first met its goal of reimbursing county libraries
100% of the average cost to provide library services to its rural residents.
Since that time, its commitment to “fair share” funding (paying for library
services at a rate equitable with municipal residents) has made a significant
difference in the quality of libraries throughout Jefferson County.

Beginning in 2008, the annual county library budget request was determined
by a formula that multiplied the number of each library’s ruraf circulations by
the average countywide cost per circulation during that year. The countywide
cost per circulation average was then used to reimburse each county library
based on its rural circulations. Each library was guaranteed by state law a
reimbursement rate of at least 70% of its costs. Most libraries received a rate
higher than that. The goal was that Jefferson County tax at a rate of 100% of
the aggregate costs per circulation so that the “fair share” partnership
between the county and the municipalities was maintained.

From 1995 through 2007, Jefferson County maintained an annual contractual
agreement with the Oconomowoc Public Library which reimbursed that library
for use by rural residents of Jefferson County in recognition of county
residents’ wish to use that library. This request for funding was added on to
the top of the total budget request each year. It provided important access
for those Jefferson County residents who lived in the far eastern portion of the
county, many of whom reside in the Oconomowoc Area School District.

In 2006, state law changed, requiring counties to pay adjacent county
libraries; as a result, beginning in 2008 a separate contract with Oconomowoc
became unnecessary. That change, which was signed into law on May 19,
2006, is known as Act 420. A key provision of the law extended to all
adjacent counties the requirement that counties reimburse public libraries for
the cost of serving county residents which live in areas of the county without
public library service. All libraries in counties adjacent to Jefferson County
(thatwhe serve Jefferson County residents living in municipalities without
fibraries) that make a valid claim for reimbursement by July 1, are included in
the county library budget request for the following year.

In 2017, the Jefferson County Library Board adopted a new funding formula.
The distribution portion of the formula was revised to add in a safety net
factor thereby stabilizing library payments. The collection portion of the
funding formula was also simplified—A-deseription-ef-the-current-fermulas
sheowr-in-Appendbchi:



fermala%e{leﬁermmewhawan%meélﬁeatmﬁhemd—beﬁade%&m&mm
electronic-collection-usage-inte-the-formula—Fhe-beard-was-alse-tasked-with
maintaining-an-cquitable-means-te-compensate-libraries-that-continued-te
WMHWW%&%WWM

In 2021, the Jefferson County Library Board reviewed the formula to - Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

determine what if any modifications should be made to incorporate digital
collection usage into the formula. At that time, Overdrive was the only digital
materials vendor able to provide data verifving the patron residency for each
circulation. Since 2022, additional vendors can provide this data. The funding
formula language has been updated to reflect this change.

. | Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

A description of the current formula is shown in Appendix A.

B. Continue to provide funding for central services such as the
county library contract and the board expenses.

In addition to eash reimbursement to libraries, each year the Jefferson County
Library Service budget includes a small amount of funding for library board
activities such as meetings and mileage and the annual contract with a county
resource library.

C. Rely on the Bridges Library System to annually collect and verify
adjacent county library requests and submit valid requests for
reimbursement in the following year’s budget request.

Although the statute indicates that the county clerk is the recipient of the
requests, the county clerk can assign the tasks to the county library service.
For many years, the county library board offered the services of the county
resource library to do all the necessary work related to adjacent county
requests for reimbursement. Because it saved the county clerk considerable
work and because the county resource library staff had the library knowledge
needed to carefully examine and verify all requests, this arrangement was
financially beneficial for the county.

Since 2016, the adjacent county reimbursement tasks are handled by the
Bridges Library System, to be overseen by the county library administrator.

D. Ensure that county payments to municipal libraries for
providing services are disbursed by March 1%t each year per
s.43.12(1).

13



The Bridges Library System, in conjunction with the county library
administrator, will send contracts for service to the Jefferson County libraries
each year after the budget is adopted with a deadline for return on or before
February 15t of the following year so the county can process their payments
prior to March 1st,

Each year, the-ceunbyresetrce-library-{er-the-Bridges Library Systemy) will
provide to the county an itemized payment schedule detailing approved
amounts for all county and adjacent county libraries as soon as possible after
the budget has been adopted.

14



4:3.

e e ' - E—
1 e i

kemcﬂy—aﬁhe&ameﬂme%ha%&br&nes—have—heeeme—m&ﬂhﬂeﬂﬁw%em
= d aﬁeémfefmatlﬁn—ﬂaeweaise

Educate stakeholders about the state of and need for county library
services.

A. Report to the Jefferson County Board of Supervisors on an
annual basis or as-requested.

There is an annual appearance of the county library board and librarians to
the finance committee but the county library board president and/or the
county library administrator are available to appear before the County Board
of Supervisors at any time.

B. It is expected that county library directors attend county
library board meetings.

The county library board depends on feedback and direction from local
librarians to guide them in their decision-making. Attendance at county library
board meetings is considered important and is set forth as an expectation in
the county library contract. While occasional meetings might be missed,
prolonged absences are not allowed. Per the county contract for library
services that each library signs annually, “the Municipal Library shall direct the

15



librarian or other representative to attend periodic County meetings with the
Jefferson County Library Council to coordinate and improve county library
services.”

C. County library directors are encouraged to share county library
information with their local library boards.

Updates from the county library service to the local library board are
important and help “close the loop” on the exchange of important information.

D. Maintain and expand the Jefferson County Library Service
website.

The county library service website is located at the following URL:
https://jeffersoncountylibraries.info/

: 2017 and i linked-to-H o ; :
daeumeﬂﬁﬁaekka&bfhws—%mﬂwﬂe{meﬁ—aﬁda%usbeeeﬂeﬁt&tmﬁ-guﬂe
are-aceessible-atthissite-aleng-with-otheruseful-county-library-service

The website in maintained by the county library administrator and includes

information about the Jefferson County Library Service, a list of county
libraries, details about the Jefferson County Library Board, and other useful

county library service information.

E. Offer to have a county library board member or the county
library administrator attend a municipal library board meeting
for support.

At any time, a county library director may request a visit from the county
library administrator or a county library board member.

F. Make County appointments to local library boards as authorized
under Wis,I Stat. 43.60 when feasible and with input from local
libraries.

To increase engagement with and communication between local libraries and
the county, an effort will be made to explore the opportunity provided in the
statute that allows counties to make appointments to local library boards in
proportion to their share of funding. The county will consider current library
board composition, library board size as well as availability of qualified board
members.



Review of the Plan

This plan will be reviewed annually by the county library board. Changes may be

made as needed. Before the end of 2029, the board will complete a review and
revision process of the plan to be implemented the following year.

Contact Information

Jefferson County Library Service
% Dwight Foster Public Library
209 Merchants Avenue

Fort Atkinson, WI 53538
920-563-7790



Appendix A

Jefferson County Library Funding Formula Description

Formula to Determine County Library Budget Request Amount — Collection Formula:

Step 1: Calculate the previous year’s percentage of circulations to residents who live in
municipalities without libraries. These residents are referred to as True Non-Residents
(TNR). Calculations will include the circutation of physical materials and any verifiable
digital circulation@verdrive-e-content, if digital materialOverdrive-e-eentent is offered to
Jefferson County TNR. This is done by dividing the total number of circulations made at
county libraries to residents who live in municipalities without libraries (TNR) by the
total number of circulations made at the county libraries. PERCENTAGE CIRCULATION
ATTRIBUTED TO TNR (TNR %)

Step 2: Sum the county libraries’ operating expenditures as reported on the previous
year’s state required, filed annual report. OPERATING EXPENDITURES (OE)

Step 3: Multiply the percentage of circulation made by residents who live in
municipalities without libraries (TNR) by the total operating expenditures to determine
the base allocation. BASE ALLOCATION (BASE)

Step 4: Add in adjacent county library requests made by July 1. ADJACENT COUNTY
LIBRARY REQUESTS (ADJCO)

Step 5: Add in county library board administrative costs (ADMIN)

TNR% x OE = BASE + ADJCO + ADMIN = Total Collection Formula Amount
to use for budget request

Formula to Determine County Library Payments - Distribution Formisa:

Step 1: Determine minimum amount of funding for each library, incorporating
Overdrive-e-content verifiable digital material circulation if offered to Jefferson County
TNR, required under statute (as a result of WI Act 150) for each library. ACT 150
AMOUNT

Step 2: Examine each library’s prior year county allocation. Calculate either a 5% or
45,000 reduction from this amount—whichever has the lesser impact on the library.
HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT.

Step 3: Determine the rural compensation amount for each library, including verifiable
digital material circulation Sverdrive-e-cortent if offered to Jefferson County TNR, by
multiplying the number of circulations to people who live in municipalities without
libraries by the prior-year actual county-wide dollar rate per-item-borrowed (also known
as the county-wide cost per circulation), using data from the libraries’ previous year’s
state annual report. RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT




Step 4: Compare each library’s RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT (step 3) with their
ACT 150 AMOUNT (step 1) and the HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT (step 2). Libraries with
either a higher ACT 150 AMOUNT or a higher HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT than their
RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT receive the highest amount calculated. This caps the
loss for these libraries, but also makes them ineligible to receive additional funds in a
SECONDARY ALLOCATION.

Step 5: If a library's RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNT is more than their HOLD
HARMLESS AMOUNT and their ACT 150 AMOUNT, the library is eligible for a
SECONDARY ALLOCATION. The amount of funding remaining for the SECONDARY
ALLOCATION amount is determined by subtracting the total for all libraries in step 4 of
the distribution formula from the total appropriation for in-county libraries as
determined by the Library Collection Formula.

Step 6: After removing libraries not eligible for the SECONDARY ALLOCATION, the
remaining libraries’ RURAL COMPENSATION AMOUNTS are apportioned by share to
reflect each libraries proportional percentage of circulation to citizens who live in
municipalities without libraries.

Step 7: The final distribution payment for each library is the highest of their ACT 150
AMOUNT, HOLD HARMLESS AMOUNT, or proportional allocation amount calculated in
Step 6.



Jefferson County Library Service Guidelines

To ensure all Jefferson County residents receive quality public library service, the
Jefferson County Library Board seeks to support and strengthen established municipal
libraries. To that end, the following guidelines have been adopted.

Chapter 43.11 (d) and Chapter 43.64 (2m) of the Wisconsin State Statutes allows
counties to set standards for public libraries. However, the Jefferson County library
board seeks to encourage rather than penalize. Therefore, the following are set forth as
minimum guidelines and not legally required standards. It should be noted that the state
of Wisconsin has published library standards. Please consult: Wisconsin Public Library
Standards (Wisconsin Department of Public Instruction) at
https://dpi.wi.gov/libraries/public-libraries/planning-evaluation for further information.

The Jefferson County Library Board seeks to do its part to encourage excellence in

public library service within our county. Excellence is not a mere dream. Despite the
multifaceted character of the nation’s public libraries and diverse communities they

serve, excellence is achieved daily. Three principles are worth noting:

--Excellence must be defined locally - it results when library services match community
needs, interests, and priorities

--Excellence is possible for both small and large libraries - it rests more on commitment
than on unlimited resources

--Excellence is a moving target - even when achieved, excellence must continually be
maintained

Each community must do the work to set its own standards for excellence in public
library service. An annual review of these guidelines can be a step in a continuous
process of self-evaluation and planning that leads toward excellence.

All county libraries should-shal:

e Provide free, equal, and easy public access to all library services to county
residents.

e Be in compliance with all requirements for library system membership and
participate in system activities.

e Be governed by Boards of Trustees which represent their communities and are
responsible for ensuring that library services meet community needs.

e Provide an orientation and/or manual for new library board trustees.

e Encourage trustees to take part in continuing education and enrichment
programs.



e Have long range plans that articulate their mission and plans for achieving
results.

e Adopt and maintain policies that guide operations.

e Draw support from their communities and spend public funds responsibly. It
should be noted that the public library must be supported by funds from local
government on a permanent basis; special grants and donations supplement, but
do not supplant, the responsibility of the local funding authority to support the
library.

e Provide accurate accounting of budget and expenditures.

e Encourage gifts and bequests to augment the primary funding sources.

o Cooperate with other libraries and community agencies to broaden their services
and engage partners.

e Have trained staff and properly certified library directors responsible for their
overall operation.

e Provide collections which are important community resources.

e Provide a clean, safe, and an ADA accessible facility.

e Provide patron access to the Internet, governed by locally determined policy.

¢ Maintain a website that provides access to the library’s catalog, an up-to-date
calendar, subscription databases such as BadgerLink, e-content, and the library
board agendas and minutes.

e Offer services and programs for all ages that are appropriate to the mission of the
library.

e Encourage volunteers, Friends, and/or other support groups to work for the
library to broaden library services and increase community involvement.

e Conduct an annual review of the library director.

e Annually assess their library’s performance against the guidelines.

Adopted by the Jefferson County Library Board on December X, 2024



